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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT N 11 2007
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOE&R“; ‘CFJAEL W. D0BgyNs

EASTERN DIVISION S, DISTRICT COURT
DEVRY/BECKER EDUCATIONAL |
DEVELOPMENT CORP.,
Plaintiff, Civil Action No.:
V.

07CVv3280
JUDGE LINDBERG
MAGISTRATE JUDGE VALDEZ

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
JOHN DOES Nos. 1 - 10, )
)
)

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT
AND RELATED CAUSES OF ACTION

Plaintiff, DeVry/Becker Educational Development Corp., for its complaint against
Defendants, John Does Nos. 1 - 10, alleges as follows:

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This is an action for copyright infringement, fraud, and violation of the federal
Computer Fraud and Abuse Act. All claims arise out of the same set of operative facts.

2. This court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331, 28 U.S.C. § 1338 and
28 U.S.C. § 1367.

3. Venue is proper in the Northern District of Illinois under 28 U.S.C. § 1391
because, inter alia, at least one of the Defendants resides in this District, because a substantial
portion of the events giving rise to Plaintiff’s claims occurred in this District, and because
Defendants’ intentional tortious activities have caused damage to Plaintiff, which resides in this

District.
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THE PARTIES
4, Plaintiff, DeVry/Becker Educational Development Corp. (“Plaintiff” or
“DeVry™), is a Delaware corporation having an address of One Tower Lane, Oakbrook Terrace,

Illinois 60181.

5. On information and belief, Defendant John Doe No. 1 is a resident of Eimhurst,
lllinois.

6. On information and belief, Defendant John Doe No. 2 is a resident of Illinois.

7. On information and belief, Defendants John Does Nos. 3-10 have acted in concert

with John Does Nos. 1, 2 or both to accomplish the copyright infringement, fraud, and other
tortious acts described herein.

8. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants, inter alia, pursuant to 735
ILCS 5/2-209 in that Defendants have committed intentional tortious acts in the State of Nlinois,
which acts constitute the subject matter of this action.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

9. DeVry offers one of the premier study courses, called the “Becker CPA Review,”
for individuals taking the exam to become a Certified Public Accountant. DeVry’s students for
this course are located throughout the United States.

10. All students enrolling in the Becker CPA Review course receive licence to use a
set of textbooks, computer software, and video lectures on CD-ROM designed to make the
studying process more effective. DeVry does not sell those materials, but rather only grants
licenses to use them.

11. DeVry has registered its copyrights in its textbooks, computer software, and video
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lectures on CD-ROM with the United States Copyright Office. Those materials are registered
under the title “Becker CPA Review Course Materials (textbooks and CD-ROMs, Version 4.0)”
and have been given Registration Number PA-1-318-550. A copy of this Registration is
attached hereto as Exhibit A,

2.  DeVry also provides a set of flashcards designed to augment the content taught in
the Becker CPA Review course.

13.  DeVry has registered the copyright in the flashcards with the United States
Copyright Office. The flashcards are registered under the title “Becker CPA Review Course
Materials (flashcards)” and has been given Registration Number TX-6-452-058. A copy of this
Registration is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

14.  DeVry maintains a computer database that it uses to track and process orders of
the Becker CPA Review course materials (the “Order Database™).

15. In DeVry's regular course of business, it electronically sends information for
fulfillment of legitimate orders of Becker CPA Review course materials from the Order Database
to a shipping warehouse facility.

THE 2006 UNAUTHORIZED SHIPMENTS

16. On numerous occasions between March 2006 and October 2006, John Doe No. 1
gained access to the Order Database and inserted and manipulated information contained therein.

17.  John Doe No. 1 did not have authority or authorization from DeVry to access the
Order Database or to make the data insertions or manipulations which he did.

18.  During the unauthorized intrusions into the Order Database, John Doe No. 1

created counterfeit orders for Becker CPA Review course materials.
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19. Plaintiff does not know the true name of John Doe No. 1 at this time. However,
Plaintiff’s computer logs recorded the Internet Protocol (“IP”) address and date and time ofa
number of instances of creation or manipulation of the counterfeit orders. Each of those IP
addresses was in a pool used by subscribers to AT&T Internet Services. In public databases,
those IP addresses have a geographic tag of Elmhurst, [llinois. Plaintiff believes that information
obtained in discovery will lead to the identification of John Doe No. 1's true name.

20. Each of the 2006 counterfeit orders for Becker CPA Review course materials
directed that such materials should be shipped to a single residence in New York (the “New
York Residence”).

21. After the information for each counterfeit order was sent to DeVry’s shipping
warehouse facility for fulfillment, John Doe No. 1 altered the counterfeit order to disguise the
fact that it had been sent to the New York Residence.

22, As a result of the counterfeit orders created by John Doe No. 1, DeVry shipped
fifty-four (54) separate orders of Becker CPA Review course materials to the New York
Residence between March 17, 2006 and October 11, 2006.

23. The retail value of the Becker CPA Review course materials in those fifty-four
shipments to the New York Residence exceeds $180,000.

THE 2007 UNAUTHORIZED SHIPMENTS

24, On at least seven occasions between January 3, 2007 and March 3, 2007, John
Doe No. 2 gained access to the Order Database and inserted and manipulated information
contained therein.

25.  John Doe No. 2 did not have authority or authorization from DeVry to access the
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Order Database or to make the data insertions or manipulations which he did.

26. During the unauthorized intrusions into the Order Database, John Doe No. 2
created counterfeit orders for Becker CPA Review course materials.

27. Plaintiff does not know the true name of John Doe No. 2 at this time. However,
Plaintiff’s computer logs recorded the Internet Protoco! (“IP”) address and date and time ofa
number of instances of creation or manipulation of the counterfeit orders. Each of those IP
addresses was in a pool used by subscribers to Comcast Cable Communications. In public
databases, those 1P addresses have a geographic tag associated with Illinois. Plaintiff believes
that information obtained in discovery will lead to the identification of John Doe No. 2's true
name.

28. Each of the 2007 counterfeit orders for Becker CPA Review course materials
directed that such materials should be shipped to a single residence in Pennsylvania (the
“Pennsylvania Residence”™).

29.  After the information for each counterfeit order was sent to DeVry’s shipping
warehouse facility for fulfillment, John Doe No. 2 altered the counterfeit order to disguise the
fact that it had been sent to the Pennsylvania Residence.

30. As a result of the counterfeit orders created by John Doe No. 2, DeVry shipped
seven (7) separate orders of Becker CPA Review course materials to the Pennsylvania Residence
between January 3, 2007 and March 15, 2007.

3l The retail value of the Becker CPA Review course materials in those seven

shipments to the Pennsylvania Residence exceeds $20,000.
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COUNT I - COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT (JOHN DOE NO. 1)

32 DeVry adopts and realleges paragraphs | through 31,

33. DeVry owns the copyrights in the Becker CPA Review course materials.

34. John Doe No. 1 distributed copies of the Becker CPA Review course materials
without DeVry’s permission.

35.  DeVry had not sold, licensed or otherwise made any authorized transfer of the
Becker CPA Review course materials which John Doe No. 1 distributed.

36. DeVry has been damaged by the actions of John Doe No. 1.

COUNT II - COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT (JOHN DOE NO. 2)

37. DeVry adopts and realleges paragraphs 1 through 36.

38. DeVry owns the copyrights in the Becker CPA Review course materials.

39. John Doe No. 2 distributed copies of the Becker CPA Review course materials
without DeVry’s permission.

40.  DeVry had not sold, licensed or otherwise made any authorized transfer of the
Becker CPA Review course materials which John Doe No. 2 distributed.

41. DeVry has been damaged by the actions of John Doe No. 2.

COUNT III - FRAUD (JOHN DOE NO. 1)

42. DeVry adopts and realleges paragraphs 1 through 41.

43. John Doe No. 1 made numerous false statements of material fact by creating
counterfeit orders in DeVry’s Order Database.

44.  John Doe No. | knew that these statements were false, in that the alleged

purchasing parties had not actually paid for any Becker CPA Review course materials or
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enrolled in any DeVry courses.

45.  John Doe No. 1 intended that the false statements embodied in the counterfeit
orders would cause DeVry to send Becker CPA Review course materials to the New York
Residence.

46, DeVry relied on the false statements embodied in the counterfeit orders and sent
Becker CPA Review course materials to the New York Residence.

47. DeVry has been damaged by relying on the false statements of John Doe No. 1.

COUNT 1V - FRAUD (JOHN DOE NO. 2)

48. DeVry adopts and realleges paragraphs 1 through 47.

49.  John Doe No. 2 made numerous false staterents of material fact by creating
counterfeit orders in DeVry’s Order Database.

50.  John Doe No. 2 knew that these statements were false, in that the alleged
purchasing parties had not actually paid for any Becker CPA Review course materials or
enrolled in any DeVry courses.

51.  John Doe No. 2 intended that the false statements embodied in the counterfeit
orders would cause DeVry to send Becker CPA Review course materials to the Pennsylvania
Residence.

52. DeVry relied on the false statements embodied in the counterfeit orders and sent
Becker CPA Review course materials to the Pennsylvania Residence.

53. DeVry has been damaged by relying on the false statements of J ohn Doe No. 2.

COUNT V - FEDERAL COMPUTER FRAUD & ABUSE ACT (JOHN DOE NO. 1)

54, DeVry adopts and realleges paragraphs | through 53.
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55. The Order Database resides on one or more DeVry computers which qualify as
protected computers under 18 U.S.C. § 1030.

56.  John Doe No. 1 accessed the Order Database knowingly and with an intent to
defraud DeVry.

57. John Doe No. 1 accessed the Order Database without DeVry’s authorization.

58.  John Doe No. 1 created counterfeit orders on and made other changes to the Order
Database without DeVry’s authorization.

59.  The unauthorized actions of John Doe No. | in manipulating the Order Database
caused Defendants to obtain by fraud valuable copies of Becker CPA Review course materials.

60, DeVry has been damaged by the actions of John Doe No. 1.

COUNT VI - FEDERAL COMPUTER FRAUD & ABUSE ACT (JOHN DOE NO. 2)

61, DeVry adopts and realleges paragraphs 1 through 60.

62, The Order Database resides on one or more DeVry computers which qualify as
protected computers under 18 U.S.C. § 1030.

63.  John Doe No. 2 accessed the Order Database knowingly and with an intent to
defraud DeVry.

64.  John Doe No. 2 accessed the Order Database without DeVry’s authorization.

05. John Doe No. 2 created counterfeit orders on and made other changes to the Order
Database without DeVry’s authorization,

66. The unauthorized actions of John Doe No. 2 in manipulating the Order Database
caused Defendants to obtain by fraud valuable copies of Becker CPA Review course materials.

67.  DeVry has been damaged by the actions of John Doe No. 2.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, DeVry/Becker Educational Development Corp., respectfully
requests this Court to enter:

1, Judgment for Plaintiff and against John Doe No. | on Count I for copyright
infringement in violation of 17 U.S.C. § 501.

2. Judgment for Plaintiff and against John Doe No. 2 on Count II for copyright
infringement in violation of 17 U.S.C. § 501.

3. Judgment for Plaintiff and against John Doe No. 1 on Count III for fraud under
the common law,

4. Judgment for Plaintiff and against John Doe No. 2 on Count I'V for fraud under
the common law.

S. Judgment for Plaintiff and against Defendant John Doe No. 1 on Count V for
violation of the Computer Fraud and Abuse Act, 18 U.S.C. § 1030.

6. Judgment for Plaintiff and against Defendant John Doe No. 2 on Count VI for
violation of the Computer Fraud and Abuse Act, 18 U.S.C. § 1030.

7. A preliminary and permanent injunction restraining Defendants, and their heirs,
agents, servants, representatives, successors, assigns, assignees and all persons acting in active
concert or participation with Defendants, or on behalf of Defendants, from doing, causing, aiding
or abetting any of the following:

a. Accessing or manipulating any information in DeVry’s Order Database.
b. Oftering for sale, selling, or distributing any illicitly obtained Becker CPA

Review course materials or copies thereof.
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8. An order requiring Defendants to turn over to Plaintiff all illicitly obtained Becker
CPA Review materials and any copies thereof still in Defendants’ possession.

9. An order requiring Defendants to pay over to Plaintiff all damages suffered by
Plaintiff as a result of Defendants’ copyright infringement, fraud and violation of the Computer
Fraud and Abuse Act.

10.  An order requiring Defendants to pay Plaintiff’s reasonable attorneys fees,
expenses, and costs incurred in this action.

11.  An order granting such other relief as this Court may deem just.

Respectfully submitted,

DEVRY/BECKER EDUCATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT CORP.

Date: June 11, 2007 By:

Arne M. Olson

Kathryn E. Garipay
Mark R. Bagley

OLSON & HIERL, LTD.
20 North Wacker Drive
36" Floor

Chicago, Illinois 60606
(312) 580-1180

Attorneys for Plaintiff
DEVRY/BECKER
EDUCATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
CORP.

10
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